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&

Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

benefit trust or private foundation)

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except black lung 20 1 0

OMB No 1545-0047

I The organization may have to use a copy of this return to satisfy state reporting requirements Open to Public
9 Y Py porting req Inspection

A For the

B Check If applicable
I_ Address change

|_ Name change
I_ Initial return

|_ Terminated

I_ Amended

|_ Application pending

2010 calendar year, or tax year beginning 09-01-2010 and ending 08-31-2011

C Name of organization
Counclil International Study Programs Inc (ISP)

D Employer identification number

13-4038907

Doing Business As
CIEE International

E Telephone number

Number and street (or P O box If mail 1s not delivered to street address)
300 Fore Street

Room/suite (207)553-4000

return City or town, state or country, and ZIP + 4

Portland, ME 04101

F Name and address of principal officer
James P Pellow

300 Fore Street

Portland, ME 04101

I Tax-exemptstatus [ 501(c)(3) [ 501(c) ( ) M(nsertno) [ 4947(a)(1)or [ 527

J Waebsite: = www clee org

G Gross recelpts $ 91,490,098

H(a) 1sthsa group return for affiliates? I_ Yes |7 No

H(b) Are all affiliates included? [ ves [ nNo
If "No," attach a list (see Instructions)
H(c) Group exemption number &

K Form of organization |7 Corporation I_ Trust I_ Association I_ Other

L Year of formation 1999 | M State of legal domicile DE

Summary

1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities
The furtherance of international study programs and student and professional intercultural exchange programs
2
=
% 2 Check this box M If the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets
o 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) 3 11
E 4 Number of Independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) 4 11
E 5 Total number of Individuals employed in calendar year 2010 (Part V, line 2a) 5 283
E 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate If necessary) 6 0
< 7aTotal unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12 7a 0
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line 34 7b 0
Prior Year Current Year
8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) 0 0
% Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) 83,422,165 88,967,126
% 10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), ines 3,4, and 7d ) 636,693 622,390
= 11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), ines 5,6d, 8¢, 9c, 10c,and 11e) 0 0
12 Total revenue—add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line
12) 84,058,858 89,589,516
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), ines 1-3) 0 0
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) 0 0
15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines
$ 5-10) 11,288,456 14,844,213
% 16a Professional fundraising fees (PartIX, column (A), line 11e) 0 0
E b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) »0
17 Other expenses (PartIX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24f) 70,352,855 72,206,402
18 Total expenses Add lines 13-17 (must equal PartIX, column (A), line 25) 81,641,311 87,050,615
19 Revenue less expenses Subtract line 18 from line 12 2,417,547 2,538,901
g g Beginnir?e(;fr Current End of Year
éﬁ 20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) 61,052,397 66,421,075
EE 21 Total habilities (Part X, line 26) 31,591,044 33,118,797
=3 22 Net assets or fund balances Subtract line 21 from line 20 29,461,353 33,302,278

Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my
knowledge and belief, it is true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any
knowledge.

’ A 2012-07-03
Sign Signature of officer Date
Here Deanna Harnett CFO
Type or prnint name and title

Print/Type Preparer's signature Date Check If self- PTIN

preparer's name Barbara J McGuan CPA Barbara J McGuan CPA | 5012-07-03 employed k I_
Eald Fim’s name * Berry Dunn McNell & Parker LLC Firm's EIN b

reparer Firm’s address * PO Box 1100
Use Onl Phone no ® (207) 775-
y 2387
Portland, ME 041041100

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see Iinstructions) [V Yes [ No
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Cat No 11282Y Form 990 (2010)



Form 990 (2010) Page 2
m Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

Check If Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part II1 . . . . . . . . . T

1

Briefly describe the organization’s mission

To help people gain understanding, acquire knowledge, and develop skills for living in a globally interdependent and culturally diverse world

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on
the prior Form 990 0r990-EZ? . . « v & o+ e e e e e e [T Yes ¥ No
If “*Yes,” describe these new services on Schedule O
3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
SEIVICES? v v« v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e T Yes ¥ No
If “*Yes,” describe these changes on Schedule O
4 Describe the exempt purpose achievements for each of the organization’s three largest program services by expenses
Section 501(c)(3)and 501(c)(4) organizations and section 4947 (a)(1) trusts are required to report the amount of grants and
allocations to others, the total expenses, and revenue, If any, for each program service reported
4a (Code ) (Expenses $ 52,550,570 including grants of $ 58,274 ) (Revenue $ 67,829,430 )
Council ISP maintains study center programs around the world, offering semester, summer and academic year programs In a variety of subject areas These
programs are jointly sponsored by the academic consortium, an association of over 300 Institutions that endorse these programs to their students The council also
provides screening, placement, and registration assistance to students seeking to enroll iIn one of over 150 affiliated programs in over forty-five countries worldwide
4b (Code ) (Expenses $ 572,329 including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ 621,161 )
Council ISP provides professional development programs for faculty and administrators, including international faculty development seminars and an annual
conference on International education which attracts over 500 participants focusing on various aspects of the field In addtion, Council ISP I1s part of an association of
international education organizations who collectively publish the journal of studies in international education, a quarterly publication of essays and research in the
field of international education
4c (Code ) (Expenses $ 15,165,785 including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ 20,516,535 )
The Organization operates various types of work and travel programs which are designed to make 1t possible for students to visit and become immersed in the
cultures of countries other than their home country These programs are educational and are related to the exempt purpose of the organization
4d Other program services (Describe in Schedule O )
(Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )
4e Total program service expensesk$ 68,288,684

Form 990 (2010)



Form 990 (2010)
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Page 3
Checklist of Required Schedules

Yes No
Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3)or4947(a)(1) (otherthan a private foundation)? If "Yes,” Yes
complete Schedule A 1
Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see instruction)? 2 No
Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to No
candidates for public office? If "Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part I e e e e e 3
Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage In lobbying activities, or have a section 501 (h) No
election In effect during the tax year? If "Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part I1 . .. 4
Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501 (c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-19? If "Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part 5 No
Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts where donors have the
right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts 1n such funds or accounts? If "Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Part I 6 No
Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas or historic structures? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part II 7 No
Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If "Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part 111 & . 8 No
Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, serve as a custodian for amounts not listed in Part X, or
provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services? If "Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part V¥ 9 No
Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in term, permanent,or quasi- 10 No
endowments? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part
If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions Is ‘Yes,” then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII,
VIII,IX, or X as applicable
Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, linel0? If "Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Part vI.%E) 11a | YeS
Did the organization report an amount for investments—other securities in Part X, line 12 that 1s 5% or more of
Its total assets reported In Part X, line 16? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part Vi1 %% 11b No
Did the organization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, line 13 that 1s 5% or more of
Its total assets reported In Part X, line 16? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VIII.'E 11c No
Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that 1s 5% or more of its total assets
reported in Part X, line 162 If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part Ix. %) 11d | Yes
Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part X.'E 11 No

e

Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that
addresses the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes,” complete 11f No
Schedule D, Part X.
Did the organization obtain separate, Independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If "Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Parts XI, XII, and XIII ) 12a No
Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If
“Yes,” and If the organization answered 'No’to /ine 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI, XII, and XIII 1s optional | 12b | Yes
Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(1n)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule E 13 No
Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? 14a | Yes
Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising, business, and program
service activities outside the United States? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV . 14b ves
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or assistance to any
organization or entity located outside the U S ? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV . 15 ves
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or assistance to
individuals located outside the U S ? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts III and IV . 16 No
Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000, of expenses for professional fundraising services on 17 No
PartIX, column (A), ines 6 and 11e? If "Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part I (see instructions)
Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part
VIII, ines 1c and 8a? If "Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part I 18 No
Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? If 19 No
"Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part II]
Did the organization operate one or more hospitals? If "Yes,” complete Schedule H 20a No
If *Yes” to line 204, did the organization attach its audited financial statement to this return? Note. Some Form 20b

990 filers that operate one or more hospitals must attach audited financial statements (see instructions)

Form 990 (2010)
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andV, line 1

Page 4
13 @A Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants and other assistance to governments and organizations in| 54 No
the United States on PartIX, column (A), line 1? If “Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts I and II
Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants and other assistance to individuals in the United States 22 N
on Part IX, column (A), line 2? If “Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts I and II] 0
Did the organization answer “Yes” to Part VII, Section A, questions 3,4, or 5, about compensation of the v
organization’s current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated 23 s
employees? If “Yes,” complete Schedule] .
Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000
as of the last day of the year, that was I1ssued after December 31, 20027? If "Yes,” answer lines 24b-24d and N
complete Schedule K. If "No,” go to line 25 24a 0
Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? 24b
Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year
to defease any tax-exempt bonds? 24c
Did the organization act as an “on behalf of” Issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? 24d
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit transaction with
a disqualified person during the year? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part I 25a No
Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior
year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? If | 25b No
"Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part I
Was a loan to or by a current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, highly compensated employee, or
disqualified person outstanding as of the end of the organization’s tax year? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, 26 No
Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee, substantial
contributor, or a grant selection committee member, orto a person related to such an individual? If "Yes,” 27 No
complete Schedule L, Part II1]
Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties? (see Schedule L, PartIV
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions)
A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part

28a No
A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes,” N
complete Schedule L, Part IV . 28b 0
An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof) was N
an officer, director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV . 28c 0
Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If "Yes,” complete Schedule M 29 No
Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified N
conservation contributions? If "Yes,” complete Schedule M . e e e 30 0
Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If "Yes,” complete Schedule N, No

31
Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If "Yes,” complete N
Schedule N, Part IT 32 0
Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations N
sections 301 7701-2 and 301 7701-3? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part I 33 °
Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Parts II, III, IV, Yes

34
Is any related organization a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? 35 No
Did the organization receive any payment from or engage In any transaction with a controlled entity within the
meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, ine2 . . . E [ Yes ¥ No
Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related N
organization? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 36 °
Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that 1s not a related organization N
and that Is treated as a partnership for federal iIncome tax purposes? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part VI ¥ 37 °
Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11 and 19°? v
Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O 38 es

Form 990 (2010)



Form 990 (2010) Page 5
Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

Check If Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part V . . . . . . . . . v
Yes No
1la Enterthe number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096 Enter-0- if not applicable
1a 71
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a Enter -0- If not applicable 1b 0

c Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable
gaming (gambling) winnings to prize winners? . . . .+ +  « o« 4 4 a4 w e a e 1c Yes

2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax
Statements filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this

return . . . . . . . e e e e e e e e e e e e e ] 2a 283
b Ifatleastone s reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns?
2b Yes
Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a Is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions)
3a Didthe organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the
Year? . . . . e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ] 3a No
b If“Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If "No,” provide an explanation in ScheduleO . . . . . 3b
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority
over, a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial
account)? . . . . 4a | Yes
b If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country pUK,AS ,JA,TW,GM
See Instructions for filing requirements for Form TD F 90-22 1, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? . . 5a No
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or s a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 5b No
c If"Yes”toline 5a or5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T?
5c¢
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the 6a No
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible?
b If"“Yes,” did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts
were not tax deductible? . . . . . . . L L oo 00 0w e e e e e e 6b
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization recelve a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and 7a No
services provided to the payor?
b If"“Yes,” did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . . . . . 7b
c Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which i1t was required to
fille Form 82822 . . . . . . . 4 4 a e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 72 No
d If“Yes,”indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year . . . . | 7d |
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit
contract? . . . . 4 4 h h e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 7e No
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? . . 7f No
g Ifthe organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as
required? . . . v e e e e e e e e e e e 79

h Ifthe organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a
Form1098-C? . . . . .+« v « & o« W ... 7h

8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds and section 509(a)(3) supporting organizations. Did
the supporting organization, or a donor advised fund maintained by a sponsoring organization, have excess
business holdings at any time duringthevyear? . . . . . . .+ . .+« + & « o« 4 . . 8

9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.

Did the organization make any taxable distributions under section 49662 . . . . . . . . . 9a
Did the organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? . . . . . . 9b
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII, linel12 . . . 10a
Gross recelpts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club 10b
facilities
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter
Gross iIncome from members or shareholders . . . . . . . . . 11a
Gross Income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
against amounts due orreceived fromthem) . . . . . . . . 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 10417 12a

b If“Yes,” enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the
year 12b

13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.

a Is the organization licensed to iIssue qualified health plans in more than one state?

Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O 13a
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization i1s required to maintain by the states
in which the organization is licensed to 1Issue qualified health plans 13b
c Enter the amount of reserves on hand
13c
14a Did the organization recelve any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year> . . . . . 14a No
b If"Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No,” provide an explanation in Schedule O . . 14b

Form 990 (2010)



Form 990 (2010) Page 6
m Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each “Yes” response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for

a "No” response to lines 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule
O. See Instructions.

Check If Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part VI . . . . . . . . . e
Section A. Governing Body and Management
Yes No
la Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax
year . . v 4 e e e e e e e e 1a 11
b Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are
independent . . . . . . . 4w e e e e e e ib 11
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any
other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? . . . . . .+ .+ « + o« & 4w 4w . 2 No
3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct
supervision of officers, directors or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? . | 3 No
4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was
filed? 4 No
5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? . 5 No
Does the organization have members or stockholders? . . . . . .+ . .+ .+ . .« .+ .« .+ . . 6 Yes
7a Does the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who may elect one or more members of the
governing body? . . . . . . . .o . e e e e e e e e e e e e 7a | Yes
b Are any decisions of the governing body subject to approval by members, stockholders, or other persons? . .| 7b No
8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the
year by the following
The governing body? . . . .+ .+ & & & + « &« 4« 4 4 4 e e e a a4 4. | Ba ] Yes
Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governingbody? . . . . . . . . . . . .| 8b Yes
9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the
organization’s mailing address? If“Yes provide the names and addresses n Schedule o . . . 9 No
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal
Revenue Code.)
Yes No
10a Does the organization have local chapters, branches, or affillates? . . . . . . . .+ . . . . 10a No
b If"“Yes,” does the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters,
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with those of the organization? . . . . 10b
1l1a Has the organization provided a copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form?
1la | Yes
b Describe in Schedule O the process, iIf any, used by the organization to review this Form 990
12a Does the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If "No,”"goto/ine13 . . . . . . . 12a | Yes
b Are officers, directors or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise
toconflicts? . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 e e e e e e a . e o w | 12b) Yes
c Does the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If “Yes,”
describe in Schedule O howthisisdone . . . . . . .+ .+ + + + + 4 4 a4 a e 12c | Yes
13 Does the organization have a written whistleblower policy? . . . . . .+ . .+ .+ .« « .+ .+« . . 13 Yes
14 Does the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? . . . . . . . . . 14 Yes
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management offictal . . . . . . . . . . . 15a | Yes
b Other officers or key employees of the organization . . . . . . .+ .+ .+ + « « « 4 . . 15b | Yes
If"Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process In Schedule O (See instructions )
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a
taxable entity during the year? . . . . . . . . . . e e e e e e e e 16a No
b If"“Yes,” has the organization adopted a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate Its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and taken steps to safeguard the
organization’s exempt status with respect to such arrangements? . . . . . . . . . . . . 16b

Section C. Disclosure

17
18

19

20

List the States with which a copy of this Form 990 I1s required to be filedm

Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Form 1023 (or 1024 if applicable), 990, and 990-T (501(c)
(3)s only) available for public inspection Indicate how you make these available Check all that apply

[T own website | Another's website [ Upon request

Describe in Schedule O whether (and If so, how), the organization makes 1ts governing documents, conflict of
interest policy, and financial statements available to the public See Additional Data Table

State the name, physical address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the books and records of the organization

Deanna Harnett
300 Fore Street
Portland, ME 04101
(207)553-4040

Form 990 (2010)
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Page 7

m Compensation of Officers, Directors,Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated

Employees, and Independent Contractors

Check If Schedule O contains a response to any question Iin this Part VII

T

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s

tax year

# List all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount
of compensation, and current key employees Enter -0-in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid

# List all of the organization’s current key employees, if any See instructions for definition of "key employee "

# List the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee or key employee)
who recelved reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations

# List all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000
of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations

# List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations

List persons In the following order individual trustees or directors, institutional trustees, officers, key employees, highest

compensated employees, and former such persons
[~ Check this box If neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee

(A) (B) ©) (D) (E) (F)
Name and Title Average Position (check all Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours that apply) compensation compensation amount of other
per o T from the from related compensation
week _ _ 25 organization (W- organizations from the
(describe B a i % E'T_a 2/1099-MISC) (W-2/1099- organization and
hours 2= |2 i - MISC) related
=
for o2 |z g g e = organizations
related gE |z |8 T =212
organizations | - = | S| F |2 2%
g c | = e i
In = | g ] @
Schedule | %
0) T =i
(1) Thomas Mooney 100 X 0 0
Director
E:Z'zar:obert E Fallon 100 X X 0 0
(3) Patti McGlIll Peterson 100 X 0 0
Director
(4) Neal Sobania
Director 100 X 0 0
(5) Michael Stohl 100 X 0 0
Director
(6) Kenton Kerth
Vice-Chair 100 X X 0 0
(7) Kathleen Cheek-Milby 100 X 0 0
Director
(8) John H Yopp
Director 100 X 0 0
(9) David Jones 100 X 0 0
Director
(10) Charles Baquet
Director 100 X 0 0
(11) Burch Ford 100 X 0 0
Director
(12) Steven Schwartz
Past Director 100 X 0 0
(13) Noman Neurelter
Past Director 100 X 0 0
(14) Kathleen Sidel
Past Director 100 X 0 0
giz S::;gg&;%‘ggﬁ 40 00 X 1,084,905 64,915
(16) James P Pellow
President/CEO 4000 X 0 0

Form 990 (2010)



Form 990 (2010) Page 8
m Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

(A) (B) ©) (D) (E) (F)
Name and Title Average Position (check all Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours that apply) compensation compensation amount of other
per o T from the from related compensation
week _ _ 25 organization (W- organizations from the
(describe B a i % E'T_a 2/1099-MISC) (W-2/1099- organization and
hours 2= |2 Lol MISC) related
f 2 [Z(g|z |Re |2 t
or o g FEXE Qo organizations
related gE |z |8 T = =
tons| - = | S[F |2 2 (%
organiza z = = T
In = | g ] @
Schedule L %
0) " _&
(17) Phil Simon 40 00 X 125,315 0 33,697
Vice President
(18) Molly Donovan 40 00 X 169,309 0 37,784
Senior Vice President
(19) Deanna Harnett
CFO/Senior VP 40 00 X 240,061 0 44,695
(20) Paul Mclaughlin 40 00 X 237,303 0 36,570
Executive Vice President
(21) Michael VandeBerg 40 00 X 201,955 0 45,637
Vice President
(22) Martin Hogan
Executive Vice President 4000 X 233,447 0 43,343
(23) Elizabeth O'Neill 40 00 X 230,091 0 36,494
Executive Vice President
(24) John Kitonis 40 00 X 108,313 0 18,395
General Manager
(25) Anna Fincke 40 00 X 105,697 0 18,400
General Manager
(26) Catharine Scruggs 40 00 X 111,453 0 31,981
Program Director
ib Sub-Total . . . . . . .+« + v v v e e e .. R
Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, SectionA . . . . ¥
Total (add linesiband1c) . . . . . . . . . . . . * 2,847,849 0 411,911

2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 In reportable compensation from the organizationk11

Yes No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee
on line 1a? If "Yes,” complete Schedule J for such individual . .« .« « « & « & o &« 2« &« 3 No
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, Is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greaterthan $150,000°? If "Yes,” complete Schedule J for such
individual =« & 4 4w 4 4 e e s e e e w s s s ww o a e ox e w4 ] Yes
5 Did any person listed on line 1a recelve or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for
services rendered to the organization? If "Yes,” complete Schedule J for such person . . .« .« . 5 No
Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than
$100,000 of compensation from the organization
(R) (B) (©)
Name and business address Description of services Compensation
]S McCarthy
15 Dann Drive Marketing/Consulting Services 266,451

Augusta, ME 04330

Neospire Inc
1807 Ross Avenue Ste 300 Information Technology 146,047

Dallas, TX 75201
MM Identity Lab

3836 North 50th Place Marketing/Consulting Services 123,735
Phoenix, AZ 85018

Berry Dunn

100 Middle Street PO Box 1100 Audit/Consulting Services 113,852

Portland, ME 04104

Isaacson Miller Inc

263 Summer Street 7th Floor Search Firm Services 106,942

Boston, MA 02210

2 Total number of Independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 in compensation from the organization m5

Form 990 (2010)



Form 990 (2010)

m Statement of Revenue

Page 9

(A)

Total revenue

(B)
Related
or
exempt
function
revenue

(C)
Unrelated
business
revenue

(D)

Revenue

excluded
from
tax
under
sections

512,
513, or
514

ifts, grants
r amounts

sHmil

ard other

Contributions,

la Federated campaigns . . 1a
b Membershipdues . . . . ib
c Fundraisingevents . . . . 1c
d Related organizations . . . id
e Government grants (contributions) 1e

£ All other contnibutions, gifts, grants, and  1f
similar amounts not included above

g Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-1f $

h Total. Add lines 1a-1f

Program Sarwce Revenue

2a
International Study Fe

Business Code

611710

88,686,726

88,686,726

Membership Fees

611710

280,400

280,400

a n o

1]

-

All other program service revenue

g Total. Add lines 2a-2f

88,967,126

Other Revenue

3 Investment income (including dividends, interest
and other similar amounts)

Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds

5 Royalties

¥

528,095

528,095

(1) Real

(n) Personal

6a Gross Rents

b Lless rental
expenses

¢ Rental iIncome
or (loss)

d Net rental income or (loss)

(1) Securities

(n) Other

7a Gross amount
from sales of
assets other
than inventory

1,994,877

b Less costor
other basis and
sales expenses

1,900,582

Gain or (loss) 94,295

Net gain or (loss)

94,295

94,295

8a Gross income from fundraising events
(not including

$

of contributions reported on line 1c¢)
See PartIV, line 18

b Less direct expenses . . . b
c Netincome or (loss) from fundraising events

-

9a Gross income from gaming activities See PartIV, line 19

b Less direct expenses
c Netincome or (loss) from gaming activities

-

10a Gross sales of Inventory, less
returns and allowances

b Less costofgoodssold . . b
c Netincome or (loss) from sales of inventory

Miscellaneous Revenue

Business Code

11a
b

C

d All other revenue

e Total. Add lines 11a-11d

12 Total revenue. See Instructions

89,589,516

88,967,126

622,390

Form 990 (2010)



Form 990 (2010) Page 10
m Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns.
All other organizations must complete column (A) but are not required to complete columns (B), (C), and (D).
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, (A) PrOgraS‘nB)SerVICG Manage(r(1:1)ent and Funég)lsmg
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. Total expenses expenses general expenses expenses
1 Grants and other assistance to governments and organizations
inthe U S See PartIV, line21
2 Grants and other assistance to individuals in the
US SeePartlIV,line22
3 Grants and other assistance to governments,
organizations, and individuals outside the U S See
PartIV, lines 15 and 16
4 Benefits paid to or for members
5 Compensation of current officers, directors, trustees, and
key employees 2,865,520 1,765,809 1,099,711
6 Compensation not Iincluded above, to disqualified persons
(as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and persons
described in section 4958(c)(3)(B)
7 Other salaries and wages 9,235,734 3,872,537 5,363,197
Pension plan contributions (include section 401 (k) and section
403(b) employer contributions) 413,000 192,973 220,027
9 Other employee benefits 1,605,081 427,404 1,177,677
10 Payroll taxes 724,878 424,510 300,368
a Fees forservices (non-employees)
Management
b Legal 116,582 116,582
¢ Accounting 153,539 153,539
d Lobbying
e Professional fundraising services See Part IV, line 17
f Investment management fees 111,612 111,612
g Other 129,512 129,512
12 Advertising and promotion 2,285,216 450,614 1,834,602
13 Office expenses 3,100,125 156,463 2,943,662
14 Information technology 713,197 28,284 684,913
15 Rovyalties
16 Occupancy 503,139 503,139
17  Travel 1,026,692 38,643 988,049
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses for any federal,
state, or local public officials
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings 570,854 257,151 313,703
20 Interest 311,940 311,940
21 Payments to affiliates
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 2,146,529 2,146,529
23 Insurance 38,679 22,924 15,755
24 Other expenses Itemize expenses not covered above (List
miscellaneous expenses In line 24f If line 24f amount exceeds 10% of
line 25, column (A) amount, list line 24f expenses on Schedule O )
a Site Expenses 59,059,759 58,662,800 396,959
b Foreign Exchange Loss 1,868,677 1,868,677
¢ Bad Debt 62,067 62,067
d Market Adjustment - FX 8,283 8,283
e
f All other expenses
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24f 87,050,615 68,288,684 18,761,931 0
26 Joint costs. Check here & [~ if following

SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720) Complete this line only If the
organization reported in column (B) joint costs from a
combined educational campaign and fundraising solicitation

Form 990 (2010)



Form 990 (2010)

IEEIEEd Balance Sheet

Page 11

(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash—non-interest-bearing 9,781,269 1 7,855,237
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 12,806,781 2 13,600,107
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net 3
4 Accounts recelvable, net 630,003 4 798,599
5 Recelvables from current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and
highest compensated employees Complete PartII of
Schedule L 5
6 Recelvables from other disqualified persons (as defined under section 4958 (f)(1)),
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing employers, and
sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary employees' beneficiary
organizations (see Instructions)
i Schedule L 6
% 7 Notes and loans receivable, net 7
= |8 Inventories for sale or use 8
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 3,931,068] 9 5,020,871
10a Land, buildings, and equipment cost or other basis Complete 21,731,750
Part VI of Schedule D 10a
b Less accumulated depreciation 10b 5,104,548 16,376,892| 10c 16,627,202
11 Investments—publicly traded securities 13,530,956| 11 18,837,301
12 Investments—other securities See Part IV, line 11 12
13 Investments—program-related See Part IV, line 11 13
14 Intangible assets 14
15 Other assets See PartIV,linell 3,995,428| 15 3,681,758
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 34) 61,052,397 16 66,421,075
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 8,585,685| 17 9,270,392
18 Grants payable 18
19 Deferred revenue 14,905,684 19 17,196,158
20 Tax-exempt bond habilities 20
E 21 Escrow or custodial account hability Complete Part IV of Schedule D 21
E 22 Payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees, key
ﬁ employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified
= persons Complete Part II of Schedule L 22
23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties 6,990,632| 23 6,652,247
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 24
25 Other liabilities Complete Part X of Schedule D 1,109,043 25 0
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 31,591,044 26 33,118,797
- Organizations that follow SFAS 117, check here & [ and complete lines 27
& through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
5 27 Unrestricted net assets 29,461,353 27 33,302,278
E 28 Temporarily restricted net assets 28
E 29 Permanently restricted net assets 29
E Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117, check here & [~ and complete
o lines 30 through 34.
- 30 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds 30
E 31 Paid-1n or capital surplus, or land, building or equipment fund 31
&n 32 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 32
E 33 Total net assets or fund balances 29,461,353| 33 33,302,278
= 34 Total lhabilities and net assets/fund balances 61,052,397| 34 66,421,075

Form 990 (2010)



Form 990 (2010) Page 12
lm Reconcilliation of Net Assets
Check If Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part XI N2
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12)
1 89,589,516
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25)
2 87,050,615
3 Revenue less expenses Subtractline 2 from line 1
3 2,538,901
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, column (A))
4 29,461,353
5 Otherchanges in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule O)
5 1,302,024
6 Net assets or fund balances at end of year Combine lines 3, 4, and 5 (must equal Part X, line 33, column
(B)) . . . . . . 6 33,302,278
Financial Statements and Reporting
Check If Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part XII e
Yes No
1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990 [ cash [ Accrual [ Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explainin
Schedule O
2a Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? 2a No
b Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant? 2b Yes
c If"Yes,”to 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the
audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant?
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in
Schedule O 2c Yes
d If"Yes”toline 2a or2b, check a box below to Indicate whether the financial statements for the year were 1ssued
on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both
[ Separate basis [v" Consolidated basis [~ Both consolidated and separated basis
3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the
Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-1337 3a No
b If“Yes,” did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required| 3b
audit or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits

Form 990 (2010)
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OMB No 1545-0047
SCHEDULE A Public Charity Status and Public Support
(Form 990 or 990EZ) 20 1 0
Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section
ID?partrln:nt oftheSTreasury 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust. Open to Public
fremal revente semiee # Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. ™ See separate instructions. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number

Counclil International Study Programs Inc (ISP)

13-4038907

m Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions
The organization I1s not a private foundation because iti1s (For lines 1 through 11, check only one box )

1 [~ A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).

2 [T A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E )

3 [T A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).

4 [T A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the
hospital's name, city, and state

5 [T Anorganization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part II )

6 [T A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

7 [T An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) (Complete Part Il )

8 [T A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) (Complete Part II )

9 v An organization that normally receives (1) more than 331/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related to its exempt functions—subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 331/3% of
Its support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable Income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30,1975 See section 509(a)(2). (Complete PartIII )

10 [T An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety Seesection 509(a)(4).

11 [T Anorganization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of
one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2) See section 509(a)(3). Check
the box that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 11e through 11h

a [ Typel b [ Typell c¢ | Typelll - Functionally integrated d [ Typelll- Other
e [T By checking this box, I certify that the organization is not controlled directly or indirectly by one or more disqualified persons
other than foundation managers and other than one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or
section 509(a)(2)
f If the organization received a written determination from the IRS that iti1s a Type I, Type Il or Type III supporting organization,
check this box I
g Since August 17, 2006, has the organization accepted any gift or contribution from any of the
following persons?
(i) a person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (1) Yes | No
and (1) below, the governing body of the the supported organization? 11g(i)
(i) a family member of a person described in (1) above? 11g(ii)
(iii) a 35% controlled entity of a person described in (1) or (1) above? 11g(iii)
h Provide the following information about the supported organization(s)
(iii) iv
Type of Ié trze (v) (vi)
(i) ~ organization organization in Did you notify the Is the (vii)
Name of (") (descnbed on I I d organization in organization in
col (1) listed in | p | d Amount of
supported EIN lines 1- 9 above col (1) of your col (1) organize
your governing 5 - support
organization or IRC section document? support inthe U S
(see
instructions)) Yes No Yes No Yes No
Total

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 Cat No 11285F Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010 Page 2
BEETE I Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)

(A)(vi)
(Complete only If you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part I or If the organization failed to qualify
under Part III. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part III.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (orfiscal year beginning

1

6

) (a) 2006 (b) 2007 (c) 2008 (d) 2009 (e) 2010 (f) Total

Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received (Do not
include any "unusual

grants ")

Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either
paid to or expended on Its
behalf

The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

Total. Add lines 1 through 3

The portion of total contributions
by each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11, column

(f)

Public Support. Subtract line 5 from
line 4

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning

7
8

10

11

12
13

) (a) 2006 (b) 2007 (c) 2008 (d) 2009 (e) 2010 (f) Total

Amounts from line 4

Gross Income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties
and income from similar

sources

Net income from unrelated
business activities, whether or
not the business Is regularly
carried on

Otherincome Do notinclude gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explainin Part IV )

Total support (Add lines 7
through 10)

Gross recelpts from related activities, etc (See instructions ) | 12 |

First Five Years If the Form 990 1s for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax yearas a 501(c)(3) organization,
check this box and stop here

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage

14
15
16a

17a

18

Public Support Percentage for 2010 (line 6 column (f) divided by line 11 column (f)) 14

Public Support Percentage for 2009 Schedule A, Part1I, line 14 15

33 1/3% support test—2010. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 1s 33 1/3% or more, check this box

and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization [
33 1/3% support test—2009. If the organization did not check the box on line 13 or16a, and line 15 1s 33 1/3% or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization L2

10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2010. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b and line 14

1Is 10% or more, and If the organization meets the "facts and circumstances” test, check this box and stop here. Explain

in Part IV how the organization meets the "facts and circumstances” test The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization [
10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2009. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a,16b,or 17a and line

151s 10% or more, and If the organization meets the "facts and circumstances” test, check this box and stop here.

Explainin Part IV how the organization meets the "facts and circumstances” test The organization qualifies as a publicly

supported organization L2
Private Foundation If the organization did not check a box online 13, 16a, 16b,17a or 17b, check this box and see
Instructions [

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010

Page 3

.m Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)
(Complete only If you checked the box on line 9 of Part I or If the organization failed to qualfy under

Part II. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning

1

7a

[
8

in)
Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received (Do
not include any "unusual
grants ")
Gross recelpts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services
performed, or facilities furnished
In any activity that is related to
the organization's tax-exempt
purpose
Gross recelpts from activities
that are not an unrelated trade or
business under section 513
Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either
paid to or expended on Its
behalf
The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit
to the organization without
charge
Total. Add lines 1 through 5
Amounts included on lines 1, 2,
and 3 recelved from disqualified
persons
Amounts included on lines 2 and
3 received from other than
disqualified persons that exceed
the greater of $5,000 or 1% of
the amount on line 13 for the
year
Add lines 7a and 7b
Public Support (Subtract line 7c¢
from line 6 )

(a) 2006

(b) 2007

(c) 2008

(d) 2009

(e) 2010

(f) Total

47,103,393

56,912,983

81,177,755

83,422,165

88,967,126

357,583,422

47,103,393

56,912,983

81,177,755

83,422,165

88,967,126

357,583,422

0

357,583,422

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year

9
10a

11

12

13

14

(or fiscal year
beginning In)
Amounts from line 6
Gross Income from interest,
dividends, payments received
on securities loans, rents,
royalties and income from
similar sources
Unrelated business taxable
income (less section 511
taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30,1975
Add lines 10a and 10b
Net income from unrelated
business activities not included
in line 10b, whether or not the
business Is regularly carried on
Otherincome Do notinclude
gain or loss from the sale of
capital assets (Explainin Part
IvV)
Total support (Add lines 9, 10¢c,
11and12)

(a) 2006

(b) 2007

(c) 2008

(d) 2009

(e) 2010

(f) Total

47,103,393

56,912,983

81,177,755

83,422,165

88,967,126

357,583,422

1,002,766

872,105

417,065

442,135

528,095

3,262,166

1,002,766

872,105

417,065

442,135

528,095

3,262,166

1,758,019

1,758,019

48,106,159

57,785,088

83,352,839

83,864,300

89,495,221

362,603,607

First Five Years If the Form 990 s for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section501(c)(3) organization,

check this box and stop here

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage

15
16

Public Support Percentage for 2010 (line 8 column (f) divided by line 13 column (f))

Public support percentage from 2009 Schedule A, Part III, line 15

15

98 620 %

16

98 310 %

Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage

17
18
19a

20

Investment income percentage for 2010 (line 10c¢ column (f) divided by line 13 column (f))

Investment income percentage from 2009 Schedule A, Part III, ine 17

17

0900 %

18

1120 %

33 1/39% support tests—2010. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 1s more than 33 1/3% and line 17 1s not
more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported

organization

v

33 1/39% support tests—2009. If the organization did not check a box online 14 or line 19a, and line 16 1s more than 33 1/3% and line

18 1s not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization

Private Foundation If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a or 19b, check this box and see Instructions

.
L

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010 Page 4

Part IV Supplemental Information. Supplemental Information. Complete this part to provide the explanations
required by Part II, ine 10; Part II, ine 17a or 17b; and Part III, line 12. Also complete this part for any
additional information. (See instructions).

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010
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SCHEDULE D
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

Supplemental Financial Statements

k= Complete if the organization answered "Yes," to Form 990,

Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, or 12.
k= Attach to Form 990. k- See separate instructions.

OMB No 1545-0047

Open to Public
Inspection

Name of the organization
Counclil International Study Programs Inc (ISP)

Employer identification number

13-4038907

m Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete If the
organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

Total number at end of year

Aggregate contributions to (during year)

1
2
3 Aggregate grants from (during year)
4 Aggregate value at end of year

5

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors In writing that the assets held in donor advised
funds are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control?

6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds may be
used only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose
conferring impermissible private benefit

[ Yes [ No

[T Yes [ No

m Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply)

[ Preservation of land for public use (e g, recreation or pleasure)

[T Protection of natural habitat

[T Preservation of open space

[T Preservation of an historically importantly land area

[T Preservation of a certified historic structure

2 Complete lines 2a-2d If the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation
easement on the last day of the tax year

a Total number of conservation easements 2a
b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements 2b
¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (a) 2c
d Number of conservation easements included in (¢) acquired after 8/17/06 2d

Held at the End of the Year

3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during

the taxable year &

4 Number of states where property subject to conservation easement 1s located &

Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of violations, and
enforcement of the conservation easements 1t holds?

6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting and enforcing conservation easements during the year &

7 Amount of expenses Incurred in monitoring, Inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year = $

8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section

170(h)(4)(B)(1) and 170 (h)(4)(B)(11)?

[T Yes [ No

[T Yes [ No

9 InPart X1V, describe how the organization reports conservation easements In its revenue and expense statement, and
balance sheet, and include, If applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes
the organization’s accounting for conservation easements

m Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.
Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1a Ifthe organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116, not to report In Its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education or research in furtherance of public service,
provide, In Part XIV, the text of the footnote to Its financial statements that describes these items

b Ifthe organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art,
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research In furtherance of public service,
provide the following amounts relating to these items

(1) Revenues included in Form 990, Part VIII, ine 1

(i1) Assets included in Form 990, Part X

*3

*$

2 If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the
following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 relating to these items

4@ Revenues included in Form 990, Part VIII, line 1

b Assets included in Form 990, Part X

*3

3

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Intructions for Form 990 Cat No 52283D

Schedule D (Form 990) 2010
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Manizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

3 Using the organization’s accession and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its collection
items (check all that apply)

a [~ Ppublic exhibition d [T Loan or exchange programs

b [ Scholarly research e [ Other

c l_ Preservation for future generations

4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose In

Part XIV
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures or other similar
assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? [T Yes [ No

i-14®A"A Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990,
Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

la Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not

included on Form 990, Part X? [ Yes [ No
b If"Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIV and complete the following table
Amount
€ Beginning balance 1c
d  Additions during the year id
€ Distributions during the year 1le
f  Ending balance 1f
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 217 [~ Yes [~ No

b If“Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XIV

Endowment Funds. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, lne 10.
(a)Current Year (b)Prior Year (c)Two Years Back | (d)Three Years Back | (e)Four Years Back

1la Beginning of year balance

Contributions

Investment earnings or losses

Grants or scholarships

o Qo 6 o

Other expenditures for facilities
and programs

-

Administrative expenses

g End ofyearbalance

2 Provide the estimated percentage of the year end balance held as
a Board designated or quasi-endowment
b Permanent endowment ®

€ Term endowment M
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the

organization by Yes | No
(i) unrelated organizations . . . . .+ . 4 4 4 44w e e e e e w e ] 3a(d
(ii) related organizations . . . . . 4w e e e e e e e Bain

b If"Yes" to 3a(n), are the related organizations listed as required on ScheduleR? . . . . . . . . . 3b

4 Describe in Part XIV the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds
Im Investments—Land, Buildings, and Equipment. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

o2, ot ot | (q)costoratter | () hecumuitet | ) ook vae

la Land
b Bulldings . . . .+ « v v 4 e e e e 15,307,579 2,192,634 13,114,945
c Leasehold improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,266,951 738,963 527,988
d Equipment . . . . .« v e e e e e 2,044,029 971,871 1,072,158
e Other . . « e e e e 3,113,191 1,201,080 1,912,111
Total. Add lines la-1e (Column (d) should equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10(c).) . . . . .+ .. .. . m 16,627,202

Schedule D (Form 990) 2010
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m Investments—Other Securities. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.
(a) Description of security or category (c) Method of valuation
(including name of security) (b)Book value Cost or end-of-year market value
(1)Financial derivatives
(2)Closely-held equity Interests
Other
Total. (Column (b) should equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) lme 12) ¥
Investments—Program Related. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.
(c) Method of valuation
(a) Description of Investment type (b) Book value Cost or end-of-year market value
Total. (Column (b) should equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) lme 13) ¥
Other Assets. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.
(a) Description (b) Book value
(1) Security Deposit 159,528
(2) Program Advances 3,269,587
(3) Due from Affiliates 252,643
Total. (Column (b) should equal Form 990, Part X, col.(B) line 15.) ] 3,681,758

Other Liabilities. See Form 990, Part X, line

25.

1 (a) Description of Liability

(b) Amount

Federal Income Taxes

Total. (Column (b) should equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) Ine 25 ) m

2.Fin 48 (ASC 740) Footnote In Part XIV, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the
organization's hiability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC740)

Schedule D (Form 990) 2010
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m Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets from Form 990 to Financial Statements

Total revenue (Form 990, Part VIII, column (A), ine 12)
Total expenses (Form 990, Part IX, column (A), line 25)

Excess or (deficit) for the year Subtractline 2 from line 1
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments

Donated services and use of facilities

Investment expenses

Prior period adjustments

Other (Describe in Part XIV)

Total adjustments (net) Add lines 4 - 8

O 0 N & A W N =

10 Excess or (deficit) for the year per financial statements Combine lines 3 and 9

VI |IN|d|n]|h|WIN|=

10

m Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return

Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12
Net unrealized gains on investments
Donated services and use of facilities
Recoveries of prior year grants
Other (Describe In Part XIV)
Add lines 2a through 2d
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, ine 12, but notonline 1

D o n o o

Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b
Other (Describe In Part XIV)
c Add lines 4a and 4b

2a

1

2b

2c

2d

4da

2e

ab

5 Total Revenue Add lines 3 and 4c. (This should equal Form 990, PartI,line12)

4c

5

m Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial
statements

2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25
Donated services and use of facilities

Prior year adjustments

Other (Describe In Part XIV)
Add lines 2a through 2d
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1
4 Amounts included on Form 990, PartIX, line 25, but not on line 1:

a
b
c Other losses
d
e

Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b
Other (Describe In Part XIV)
c Add lines 4a and 4b

2a

1

2b

2c

2d

2e

ab

5 Total expenses Add lines 3 and 4c. (This should equal Form 990, Part I, line 18 )

1a D e\ Supplemental Information

Complete this part to provide the descriptions required for Part II, ines 3,5, and 9, PartIlI, lines 1a and 4, Part IV, lines 1b and 2b,
PartV, line 4, Part X, Part XI, ine 8, Part XII, ines 2d and 4b, and Part XIII, lines 2d and 4b Also complete this part to provide any

additional information

Identifier | Return Reference | Explanation

Schedule D (Form 990) 2010
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SCHEDULE F
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

» Attach to Form 990. + See separate instructions.

Statement of Activities Outside the United States

» Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990,

Part IV, line 14b, 15, or 16.

OMB No 1545-0047

Name of the organization

Council International Study Programs Inc (ISP)

13-4038907

2010

Open to Public
Inspection

Employer identification number

m General Information on Activities Outside the United States. Complete If the organization answered
“Yes” to Form 990, Part IV, line 14b.

1 For grantmakers. Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or
assistance, the grantees' eligibility for the grants or assistance, and the selection criteria used to award

the grants or assistance? . [T Yes [T No
2 For grantmakers. Describe in Part V the organization’s procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds outside the
United States
3 Activites per Region (Use Part V If additional space I1s needed )
(a) Region (b) Number of (c) Number of (d) Activities conducted in |(e) If activity listed in (d) 1s a (f) Total

offices in the
region

employees or
agents In region or|

region (by type) (e g,
fundraising, program

program service, describe
specific type of

expendrtures for
region/Iinvestments

independent services, Investments, grants service(s) In region In region
contractors to recipients located in the
region)

East Asia and the Pacific 12 43 |Program Services Study abroad programs 7,300,000
for students

Europe 23 96 |Program Services Study abroad programs 24,300,000
for students

Middle Eastand N Africa 3 10 |Program Services Study abroad programs 3,000,000
for students

Russia and the Newly 1 5 |Program Services Study abroad programs 1,400,000
Independent States for students

South America 6 36 |Program Services Study abroad programs 6,000,000
for students

Sub-Saharan Africa 6 21 |Program Services Study abroad programs 5,000,000
for students

Central America and the 6 27 |Program Services Study abroad programs 2,600,000
Caribbean for students

North America 1 2 |Program Services Study abroad programs 300,000
for students

South Asia 2 4 |Program Services Study abroad programs 500,000
for students

3a Sub-total 58 240 49,900,000

b Total from continuation sheets 2 500,000

to PartI 4
c Totals (add lines 3a and 3b) 60 244 50,400,000

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

Cat

No 50082wW Sched

ule F (Form 990) 2010
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m Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations or Entities Outside the United States. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990,
Part IV, line 15, for any recipient who received more than $5,000. Check this box If no one recipient received more than $5,000 . > v
Use Part V If additional space i1s needed.

1 (b) IRS code (c) Region (d) Purpose of (e) Amount of (f) Manner of (g) Amount of (h) Description (i) Method of
(a) Name of section grant cash grant cash of non-cash of non-cash valuation
organization and EIN (if disbursement assistance assistance (book, FMV,

applicable) appraisal, other)

2 Enter total number of recipient organizations listed above that are recognized as charities by the foreign country, recognized as
tax-exempt by the IRS, or for which the grantee or counsel has provided a section 501(c)(3) equivalency letter . -

3  Enter total number of other organizations or entities . .

Schedule F (Form 990) 2010
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m Grants and Other Assistance to Individuals Outside the United States. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 16.
Use Part V If additional space i1s needed.

(a) Type of grant or
assistance

(b) Region

(c) Number of
recipients

(d) Amount of
cash grant

(e) Manner of cash
disbursement

(f) Amount of
non-cash
assistance

(g) Description
of non-cash
assistance

(h) Method of
valuation
(book, FMV,
appraisal, other)

Schedule F (Form 990) 2010
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1a®\'4 Foreign Forms

1

Page 4

Was the organization a U S transferor of property to a foreign corporation during the tax year? If "Yes," the
organization may be required to file Form 926 (see instructions for Form 926)

Did the organization have an interest in a foreign trust during the tax year? If " Yes,"” the organization may be
required to file Form 3520 and/or Form 3520-A. (see instructions for Forms 3520 and 3520-A)

Did the organization have an ownership interest in a foreign corporation during the tax year? If "Yes,” the
organization may be required to file Form 5471, Information Return of U.S. Persons with respect to Certain Foreign
Corporations. (see instructions for Form 5471)

Was the organization a direct or indirect shareholder of a passive foreign investment company or a qualified
electing fund during the tax year? If "Yes,"” the organization may be required to file Form 8621, Return by a
Shareholder of a Passive Foreign Investment Company or Qualified Electing Fund. (see instructions for Form 8621)

Did the organization have an ownership interest in a foreign partnership during the tax year? If "Yes,” the

organization may be required to file Form 8865, Return of U.S. Persons with respect to Certain Foreign Partnerships.

(see instructions for Form 8865)

Did the organization have any operations in or related to any boycotting countries during the tax year? If "Yes,”

the organization may be required to file Form 5713, International Boycott Report (see instructions for Form
5713).

[T Yes

[T Yes

[T Yes

[T Yes

[T Yes

[T Yes

[+ No

Schedule F (Form 990) 2010
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Name: Council International Study Programs Inc (ISP)
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Supplemental Information
Complete this part to provide the information (see instructions) required in Part I, ine 2, and any additional

information.
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Schedule J Compensation Information OMB No 1545-0047
(Form 990) For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest 20 1 0
Compensated Employees
k- Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, -
Department of the Treasury Part IV, question 23. Open to Public
Intemal Revenue Service = Attach to Form 990. & See separate instructions. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
Counclil International Study Programs Inc (ISP)
13-4038907
m Questions Regarding Compensation
Yes | No
1la Check the appropilate box(es) If the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed in Form
990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a Complete Part III to provide any relevant information regarding these items
[T First-class or charter travel [ Housing allowance or residence for personal use
[T Travel for companions [T Payments for business use of personal residence
[T Tax idemnification and gross-up payments [T Health or social club dues or initiation fees
[T Discretionary spending account [T Personal services (e g, maid, chauffeur, chef)
b Ifany of the boxes in line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or
reimbursement orprovision of all the expenses described above? If "No," complete Part III to explain 1b | Yes
2 Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all
officers, directors, trustees, and the CEO/Executive Director, regarding the items checked in line 1a? 2 |ves
3 Indicate which, If any, of the following the organization uses to establish the compensation of the
organization's CEO /Executive Director Check all that apply
I Compensation committee [V Written employment contract
[V Independent compensation consultant [ Compensation survey or study
[ Form 990 of other organizations [ Approval by the board or compensation committee
4 During the year, did any person listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a with respect to the filing organization
or a related organization
Recelve a severance payment or change-of-control payment from the organization or a related organization? 4a No
Participate In, or receive payment from, a supplemental nonqualified retirement plan? 4b | Yes
c Participate In, or receive payment from, an equity-based compensation arrangement? 4c No
If"Yes" to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part III
Only 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations only must complete lines 5-9.
5 For persons listed in form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the revenues of
The organization? 5a No
Any related organization? 5b No
If"Yes," to line 5a or 5b, describe iIn Part II1
6 For persons listed in form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the net earnings of
The organization? 6a No
Any related organization? 6b No
If"Yes," to line 6a or 6b, describe iIn Part II1
7 For persons listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any non-fixed
payments not described in lines 5 and 6? If "Yes," describe in Part I1I 7 No
8 Were any amounts reported in Form 990, Part VII, paid or accured pursuant to a contract that was
subject to the initial contract exception described in Regs section 53 4958-4(a)(3)? If "Yes," describe
inPartIII 8 No
9 If"Yes" to line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in Regulations
section 53 4958-6(c)? 9

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Intructions for Form 990 Cat No 50053T Schedule J (Form 990) 2010
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Im Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees. Use duplicate copies If additional space 1s needed.

For each individual whose compensation must be reported in Schedule ], report compensation from the organization on row (1) and from related organizations, described in the
instructions on row (11) Do not list any individuals that are not listed on Form 990, Part VII

Note. The sum of columns (B)(1)-(in) must equal the applicable column (D) or column (E) amounts on Form 990, Part VII, line 1a

(A) Name

(B) Breakdown of W-2 and/or 1099-MISC compensation

(C) Retirement and
other deferred

(D) Nontaxable
benefits

(E) Total of columns | (F) Compensation
(B)(1)-(D) reported In prior

(i) Base (ii) Bonus & (iii) Other

compensation incentive reportable compensation Form 990 or

P compensation compensation Form 990-EZ
(1) Stevan Trooboff (n 342,403 192,750 549,752 12,834 52,081 1,149,820 0
() 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(2) Phil Simon 0 93,865 30,850 600 5,133 28,564 159,012 0
() 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(3) Molly Donovan 0 111,559 57,750 0 6,083 31,701 207,093 0
() 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(4) Deanna Harnett ) 158,193 77,750 4,118 7,917 36,778 284,756 0
() 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(5) Paul McLaughlin (n 158,303 77,750 1,250 7,917 28,653 273,873 0
() 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(6) Michael VandeBerg (1) 154,905 47,050 0 7,904 37,733 247,592 0
() 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(7) Martin Hogan (M 155,697 77,750 0 8,000 35,343 276,790 0
() 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(8) Elizabeth O 'Neill () 152,341 77,750 0 7,750 28,744 266,585 0
() 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

Schedule J (Form 990) 2010
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.m Supplemental Information

Complete this part to provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for Part I, ines 1a, 1b, 4c, 5a,5b, 6a,6b, 7, and 8 Also complete this part for any additional information

Identifier Return Explanation
Reference

PartI, Line 1a |A housing allowance of $5,000 per month i1s provided to the president of the organization per a written agreement between the president and the Organization The
housing allowance i1s included in the W-2 of the president

PartI, Line 4b |The President/CEQO, Stevan Trooboff, participated in a supplemental non-qualified retirement plan as described in the Internal Revenue Code Section 457 (f)

Schedule J (Form 990) 2010
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OMB No 1545-0047
SCHEDULE O .
(Form 990 or 990-E7) Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ 20 1 0
Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on
E?S;ZT:ZZ;LT;:EZW Form 990 or to provide any additional information.
k- Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. Inspection

Name of the organization
Counclil International Study Programs Inc (ISP)

Employer identification number

13-4038907

Identifier

Return Reference

Explanation

Form 990, Part VI, Section A, Ine 6

The sole member of the Corporation i1s CIEE, Inc , a Delaw are corporation




Identifier Return Explanation
Reference

Form 990, Part V|, Members of the Board of Directors of CIEE are elected by the Membership Every member of CIEE has a
Section A, line 7a voting representative The Board nominates people to the Board and the Membership elects themvia
vote of the voting representatives




Identifier

Return
Reference

Explanation

Form 990,
Part V|,
Section B, line
11

The 990 Form s prepared by an independent public accounting firm from published materials of the Organization
provided by management All material contained in the 990 1s covered by the Employee Handbook, Goal Setting
and Performance Management system, compensation management system and budgeting and reporting
processes All of these materials are review ed on a regular basis w ith the Board of Directors A copy of the
Form 990 1s shared w ith both the Audit and Finance Committee of the Board and all members of the Board on an
annual basis Currently, a draft of the 990 Is review ed w ith the Board Audit and Finance Committee prior to
filng




Identifier

Return
Reference

Explanation

Form 990, Part
VI, Section B,
line 12¢

Every member of the Board of Directors Is required to sign and date, on an annual basis, a Conflict of Interest
Statement w hich discloses any potential conflicts of interest As of this writing, no such conflicts exist Every
officer of the Organization i1s a full time employee and subject to a conflict of interest policy, a gifts and gratuities
policy and a nepotism policy w hich are part of the Organization's Employee Handbook Vendor contracts are
review ed by at least two levels of management to assure that no conflicts of interest exist




Identifier Return Explanation
Reference

Form 990, Part | The Organization has commissioned a compensation study every five years regarding compensation paid to the
V|, Section B, | CEO and President w ho is the senior full time officer of the Organization This study Is comprehensive in nature
line 15 and includes comparative data and substantiation of compensation There Is also an annual goal setting and
performance appraisal process for this officer whose compensation i1s annually review ed and set by the
Executive Committee of the Board of Directors All employees of the Organization are subject to an annual goal
setting and performance appraisal process Compensation levels are based on competitive analysis of jobs, and
salaries of top officers have been regularly disclosed as part of the Form 990 process and discussed at Board
meetings as part of the annual budget approval process




Identifier

Return
Reference

Explanation

Form 990, Part
VI, Section C,
line 19

The form 990 has been a publicly avallable document for many years and 1s available on line, without cost, to
anyone In addtion, the company's Employee Handbook including conflict of interest policy, gifts and gratuities and
nepotism policy are all publicly available All these documents are review ed periodically by legal counsel to assure
compliance with all policies and procedures of local and national authorities Financial statements are regularly
provided to banking and other partners and on request to interested individuals No such request has ever been
denied Summary financial information I1s available on the Form 990 and a matter of public record All Board
members receive a copy of the financials and there 1s a regular review of both auditors and results of an annual
audtt (prepared by Certified Public Accountants) by the Board Audit and Finance Committee The full Board votes
annually regarding audit acceptance




Identifier Return Reference Explanation

Changes In Net Assets or Fund Balances Form 990, Part X|, Iine 5 Net unrealized gains on investments 1,302,024




Identifier

Return
Reference

Explanation

Oversight of
Audtt

Form 990, Part X,
Line 2¢c

The Audit and Finance Committee are responsible for overseeing the financial statement audit and the
selection of the Independent accountant This process has not changed fromthe prior year
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SCHEDULE R
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

Related Organizations and Unrelated Partnerships

k- See separate instructions.

= Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part 1V, line 33, 34, 35, 36, or 37.
= Attach to Form 990.

OMB No 1545-0047

Open to Public
Inspection

Name of the organization
Counclil International Study Programs Inc (ISP)

13-4038907

Employer identification number

IEEEIREHl 1dentification of Disregarded Entities (Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 33.)

(a)
Name, address, and EIN of disregarded entity

(b)

Primary activity

(c) (d)
Legal domicile (state Total iIncome
or foreign country)

(e)

End-of-year assets

0]
Direct controlling
entity

(1) International Exchange Travel Insurance Company LLC
300 Fore Street

Portland, ME 04101

20-4458471

and Work Exchange
Program Insurance

International Educational

CIEE Inc

(2) Montreal Street Realty LLC
300 Fore Street

Portland, ME 04101
51-0414702

Student Housing

ME

CIEE Inc

(3) Quebec Street Realty LLC
300 Fore Street

Portland, ME 04101
51-0414702

Student Housing

ME

CIEE Inc

IEXYTEil 1dentification of Related Tax-Exempt Organizations (Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34 because it had one
or more related tax-exempt organizations during the tax year.)

(a)
Name, address, and EIN of related organization

(b)

Primary activity

(c) (d)
Legal domicile (state Exempt Code section

(e)
Public chanty status

(9)
Section 512(b)(13)

Direct controlling controlled

or foreign country) (if section 501(c)(3)) entity organization
Yes No
(1) CIEE Inc
300 Fore Street Parent Company DE 501(c)(3) Line 11b, T [N/A No
Portland, ME 04101
51-0414702
(2) CIEE Ping Foundation
300 Fore Street Scholarship and Advocacy DE 501(c)(3) Lne 11a. 1 CIEE Inc No
Portland, ME 04101
20-1698494
(3) Councll on International Educational Exchange
300 Fore Street HS Inbound programs and NY 501(c)(3) Line 9 CIEE Inc No

Portland, ME 04101
13-5619649

grants

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

Cat No 50135Y

Schedule R (Form 990) 2010



Schedule R (Form 990) 2010

Page 2

EETSEi#d Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Partnership (Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34
because It had one or more related organizations treated as a partnership during the tax year.)

(c)

(a) (b) Legal
Name, address, and EIN of Primary activity domicile
related organization (state or
foreign
country)

(d)
Direct controlling
entity

(e)
Predominant income
(related, unrelated,
excluded from tax
under sections 512-

514)

(N

Share of total income

(h) (i) ()
(g9) Disproprtionate Code V—UBI General or K
Share of end-of-year | allocations? amount in box 20 of managing (k)
assets Schedule K-1 partner? Percentage
(Form 1065) ownership
Yes No Yes No

- 1i#A"A Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Corporation or Trust (Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V,
line 34 because It had one or more related organizations treated as a corporation or trust during the tax year.)

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (" (9) (h)
Name, address, and EIN of related organization Primary activity Legal domicile Direct controlling Type of entity Share of total Income Share of Percentage

(state or entity (C corp, S corp, end-of-year ownership
foreign or trust) assets
country)

(1) CIEE Exchanges Inc

300 Fore Street CIEE Inc

Portland, ME04101 Inactive DE ¢

36-4528417

(2) CIEE International Cayman Islands

300 Fore Street Inactive CJ CIEE Inc C

Portland, ME04101

(3) CIEE-Japan Language Testing

Cosmos Aoyama 5-53-67 Programs & IA CIEE Inc C

Jingumae Shibuya-ku, Tokyo 150-8355 Exchange Programs

JA

(4) CIEE Educational Information Consulting Co LTD

Shanghai Industnial Investmt Bld Exchange Programs CH CIEE Inc c

Shanghai 200030

CH

Schedule R (Form 990) 2010



Schedule R (Form 990) 2010 Page 3

Transactions With Related Organizations (Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, 35, 35A, or 36.)

Note. Complete line 1 iIf any entity 1s listed in Parts II, III orIV Yes | No
1 During the tax year, did the orgranization engage I1n any of the following transactions with one or more related organizations listed in Parts II-IV?
a Receipt of (i) interest (ii) annuities (iii) royalties (iv) rent from a controlled entity 1a No
b Gift, grant, or capital contribution to other organization(s) ib No
c Gift, grant, or capital contribution from other organization(s) 1c No
d Loans orloan guarantees to or for other organization(s) 1d | Yes
e Loans orloan guarantees by other organization(s) le | Yes
f Sale of assets to other organization(s) 1f No
g Purchase of assets from other organization(s) 1g No
h Exchange of assets ih No
i Lease of facilities, equipment, or other assets to other organization(s) 1i No
j Lease offacilities, equipment, or other assets from other organization(s) 1j No
k Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations for other organization(s) 1k No
I Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations by other organization(s) 1l No
m Sharing of facilities, equipment, mailing lists, or other assets im| Yes
n Sharing of paid employees in No
o Reimbursement paid to other organization for expenses 1o No
Reimbursement paid by other organization for expenses ip No
q Othertransfer of cash or property to other organization(s) 1q No
r Othertransfer of cash or property from other organization(s) ir No

2 Ifthe answerto any of the above I1s "Yes," see the instructions for information on who must complete this line, including covered relationships and transaction thresholds

(a) (b) (©) (d)
Transaction Method of determining amount
Name of other organization Amount involved
type(a-r) involved
(1) CIEE-Japan E 244,470  |FMV
(2)
3)
(4)
(5)
(6)

Schedule R (Form 990) 2010



Schedule R (Form 990) 2010 Page 4

IEEITEZ28 Unrelated Organizations Taxable as a Partnership (Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 37.)

Provide the following information for each entity taxed as a partnership through which the organization conducted more than five percent of its activities (measured by total assets or gross
revenue) that was not a related organization See instructions regarding exclusion for certain investment partnerships

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) 0] (9) (h)
Name, address, and EIN of entity Primary activity Legal domicile Are all Share of Disproprtionate Code V—UBI General or
(state or foreign partners end-of-year allocations? amount In box managing
country) section assets 20 of Schedule K-1 partner?
501(c)(3) (Form 1065)
organizations?
Yes No Yes No Yes No

Schedule R (Form 990) 2010
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Page B

.m Supplemental Information

Complete this part to provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule R (see Instructions)

Identifier

Return Reference

Explanation

Schedule R (Form 990) 2010
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B BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors
CIEE, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the consolidated statement of financial position of CIEE, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of
August 31, 2011, and the related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows for the year then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the management of CIEE, Inc. and
Subsidiaries. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of matenal misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of CIEE, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of August 31, 2011, and the
consolidated changes in their net assets and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

BJ/M? Daenn M Vel § Porder, LLC

Portland, Maine
December 20, 2011

Bangor, ME e Portland, ME ® Manchester, NH
www berrydunn com



CIEE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

August 31, 2011

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts
of approximately $104,000
Program advances and other receivables
Prepaid expenses
Other current assets

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net

Investments
Other assets

Total assets
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities

Current maturities of note payable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Self-insured claims and premium reserve
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Note payable, net of current maturities

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 5, 7 and 8)
Unrestricted net assets
Board designated for investment
Other

Total unrestricted net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

$ 31,347,448

2,431,229
3,458,044
5,498,994
1,040,324

43,776,039
16,721,251
21,237,465

588,189

$_ 82322844

T

$ 353,000
1,027,992
8,796,331

17,399,703
2,476,419
__1.540.846

31,594,291

6,299,248

37.893,539

21,237,465
23,191,940

44,429 405

$_82.322844

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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CIEE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year Ended August 31, 2011

Operating revenue $108,824.698
Operating expenses
Program
Work and study 26,021,601
Study abroad 55,878,777
Management and administrative 20,485 598
Total operating expenses 102,385,976
Excess of revenue over expenses from operations 6,438,722
Other expense, net of other income (266,090)
Return on investments 2,063,300
Interest income 60,606
Foreign exchange loss (1.863.054)
Excess of revenue over expenses before
net translation gains 6,433,484
Net translation gains 230.581
Change in unrestricted net assets 6,664,065
Unrestricted net assets, beginning of year 37,765,340
Unrestricted net assets, end of year $_44.429.405

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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CIEE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended August 31, 2011

Cash flows from operating activities

Change in unrestricted net assets $ 6,664,065
Adjustment to reconcile change in unrestricted net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 2,189,017
Net realized and unrealized gain on investments (1,692,249)
Decrease (increase) in
Accounts receivable (652,259)
Program advances and other receivables 628,683
Prepaid expenses (1,159,104)
Other current assets (153,552)
Other assets (3,878)
Increase (decrease) in
Accounts payable 153,411
Accrued expenses 1,235,263
Deferred revenue 2,216,213
Self-insured claims reserve (286,794)
Other current liabilities (74,394)
Net cash provided by operating activities 9.064.422
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property and equipment (2,408,411)
Property deposit and acquisition of other assets (125,015)
Proceeds from sale of investments 2,241,382
Purchase of investments (5.612.049)
Net cash used by investing activities {5.904.093)
Cash flows from financing activities
Principal payments on note payable (338.383)
Net cash used by financing activities (338.383)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (1.110)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,820,836
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 28526612
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $_31,347.448

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

-4-



CIEE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

August 31, 2011

Nature of Business

CIEE, Inc and Subsidiaries (“CIEE”) is a membership organization founded in 1951 under the
predecessor of the Not-for-Profit Corporation law of the State of New York. Its membership consists
primarily of U.S colleges and universities and international organizations, associations and other
entities which support international educational exchange.

CIEE is engaged in administering international education and experiential learning programs in Africa,
Asia, Australia, Eastern and Western Europe, Latin America, the Middle East, and North America
CIEE has three program units organized into two operating divisions. International Study Programs
(“Outbound”) which administers study abroad programs principally for U.S. college students, and Public
Diplomacy Work Exchange Programs (“Inbound”) which administers two U.S. government sanctioned
programs operating under the auspices of the Fulbright Hays Act. These include Summer Work and
Travel and Trainee programs. The third division is the Gateway programs whose major component
includes the USA High School Annual Year program The inbound programs and the majority of
Gateway programs involve bringing non-U.S. nationals to the U.S.

The Outbound division operates study centers in approximately 41 countries and offers over 130
different programs. These study centers administer and coordinate Outbound’s relationships and
programs with the various international educational institutions and educators through which study
programs are offered as well as providing student support services. In conjunction with the operation of
the international study centers, cash balances are maintained at the centers, primarily in local financial
institutions, for the operating costs of the center.

The Inbound and High School Gateway programs distribute their programs through independent
agents in over 35 countries.

CIEE also has a significant office in Japan which is involved in exchange activities and distributing
products in Japan for Educational Testing Service.

The CIEE Ping Foundation is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CIEE which was formed in September 2004
to support the advocacy, research and scholarship interests of CIEE.

International Exchange Travel Insurance Company, LLC (IEXTICO), a wholly-owned for-profit
subsidiary of CIEE, was formed in August 2006 as a captive Insurance entity to manage the inbound
travel and health insurance needs of CIEE.

Due to the numerous foreign cash accounts maintained in local currencies by the Outbound division
and due to the Japan division which maintains assets and liabilities in its respective local functional
currency, the combined CIEE entity is subject to foreign currency exchange risk due to changes In
foreign currency rates Total cash maintained in foreign currencies amounted to approximately
$5,900,000 at August 31, 2011.

CIEE is also subject to various local statutory, tax and legal requirements due to the numerous
international jurisdictions in which it operates. CIEE uses external legal counsel to help manage its
exposures and risks.




CIEE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

August 31, 2011

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of CIEE and all of its subsidiaries. All
iIntercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those estimates
and assumptions affect the reported assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenses. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Definition of Operations

The statement of activities includes an excess of revenue over expenses from operations.
Changes in unrestricted net assets which are excluded from the excess of revenue over expenses
from operations include investment-related income, gains and losses from sale of property and
equipment, Interest expense, investment fees, foreign exchange and net translation gains and
losses, nonrecurring costs and losses, and other items not directly related to providing programs.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less, excluding those held in the investment portfolio.

CIEE has cash deposits with various banks consisting principally of demand deposits and time
deposits, the amounts of which may at times exceed the federally insured deposit limits. CIEE has
not experienced any losses on Iits cash deposits

Accounts Receivable, Program Advances and Other Receivables

Accounts receivable, program advances and other receivables are stated at the amount
management expects to collect from outstanding balances. Management provides for probable
uncollectible amounts through a charge to earnings and a credit to a valuation allowance based on
its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the
valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable, program advances and other receivables.




CIEE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

August 31, 2011

Revenue Recognition

CIEE recognizes revenue when it is earned. Revenue related to administering international
education programs is recognized when such programs have been delivered. For the fall
semester, students generally attend the programs from September to December. CIEE bills for the
fall semester prior to August 31 and includes the amounts in deferred revenue, since the program
has not been delivered. Expenses related to the fall semester which have been incurred prior to
August 31 are reported as prepaid expenses. Revenue pertaining to administering international
work experience programs is recognized upon CIEE’s completion of its legal and contractual
obligations required by such destination countries. Revenues received from grants are recognized
as unrestricted revenue when such funds are used for their specified purposes. All revenue is thus
classified as unrestricted.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated over the useful lives of the assets
using the straight-line method. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the
useful life or the life of the lease. The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged to expense as
incurred; significant renewals and betterments are capitalized. The related costs and accumulated
depreciation of disposed assets are eliminated and any gain or loss on disposition is reported in
the statement of activities separately from the excess of revenue over expenses from operations.

CIEE capitalizes certain costs incurred to develop and obtain software for internal use. Costs that
are capitalized include external direct costs of services and materials as well as internal costs for
employees directly associated with a software development project including compensation and
employee benefits. Capitalized software costs are amortized using the straight-line method over
the useful life of the software. Amounts for the year ended August 31, 2011, approximated:

Software costs capitalized $1,052,000
Amortization expense 707,000
Investments

Investments are presented in the financial statements at fair value since all have readily
determinable fair values.




CIEE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

August 31, 2011

Foreign Currency Translation

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at year-end rates of exchange, and the
consolidated statement of activities is translated at the average rates of exchange for the year.
Accumulated losses resuiting from translating financial statements denominated In currencies
other than the U.S. dollar are reflected as a component of net assets and totaled approximately
$1,056,000 at August 31, 2011. Net translation gains for the year ended August 31, 2011, totaled
approximately $231,000 and have been reflected in the consolidated statement of activities.

Hedging Instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recorded at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial
position as either assets or liabilities. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recorded as
changes in net assets within the consolidated statement of activities. There were no derivative
financial instruments outstanding at August 31, 2011.

Allocation of Costs

Costs are allocated to programs based on actual or estimated usage of resources. Payroll costs
are directly allocated to applicable programs Other costs are allocated based on direct labor,
physical usage of facilities or specific identification.

Self-lnsurance Plans

CIEE is partially self-insured with respect to health benefits of eligible employees and their eligible
dependents. Estimated unpaid claims and unearned premiums have been recorded as a liability
and are included in accrued expenses in the statement of financial position.

CIEE is also partially self-insured with respect to various coverages offered by CIEE (through
IEXTICO) in conjunction with its work and study programs Estimated unpaid claims and claims
adjustments have been recorded as a liability and reported as a self-insured claims reserve in the
statement of financial position Management believes that its self-insured claims reserve at August
31, 2011, represents its best estimate However, because of the limited population of insured risks,
limited historical data, economic conditions, judicial decisions, legislation and other matters, it is
not presently possible to determine whether actual loss experience will conform to the
assumptions used in estimating the liability. As a result, the actual liability could differ significantly
from the amount indicated In the consolidated financial statements As adjustments to these
estimates become necessary, such adjustments will be reported in current operations in a future
year.




CIEE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

August 31, 2011

Advertising

CIEE expenses the costs of advertising as incurred. Advertising expense totaled approximately
$750,000 for the year ended August 31, 2011, and primarily includes on-line advertising, print ads
and other printed promotional materals and brochures.

Income Taxes

CIEE, Inc., its U.S. Outbound and Inbound subsidiaries, and CIEE Ping Foundation are not-for-
profit corporations as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and are exempt
from federal income taxes on related income.

IEXTICO is a single member Limited Liability Company which is considered to be a disregarded,
related-purpose entity and is reported within CIEE Inc.’s Federal tax information return. As such,
IEXTICO does not incur income tax.

Subsidiaries In Japan and Taiwan are taxed by those countries independently. Income tax
expense differed from that which would result from applying U.S statutory rates to income before
income taxes because of foreign tax rates which differ from those of the U.S. Such income taxes
are not material to the overall financial statements.

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles, CIEE's management has considered transactions or events
occurring through December 20, 2011, which was the date that the financial statements were
available to be issued.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following at August 31, 2011:

Estimated

Useful Life
Building 20 years $ 14,653,080
Office furniture and equipment 3-11 years 2,601,390
Leasehold improvements 5-20 years 1,643,435
Computer equipment and software 1-5 years 3,803,251
22,701,156
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 5,979,905

$_16,721,251

A $25,000 deposit on the purchase of additional space in CIEE's Portland, Maine headquarters
building is included In other assets in the statement of financial position at August 31, 2011
Management expects to complete the $1,300,000 cash purchase in late December 2011.
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CIEE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

August 31, 2011

Investments

A summary of CIEE's unrestricted investments at fair value at August 31, 2011, follows:

Fair

Cost Value
Invested cash and cash equivalents $ 528,717 $ 528,717
Marketable equity securities 11,057,554 11,473,408
Mutual funds 258,856 429,625
Corporate debt and government obligations 5,369,813 5,635,752
Private offering interests 2,002,705 3,169,963

$_19217 645 $_21,237465

]

The following summarizes return on investments for the year ended August 31, 2011

Interest and dividend income $ 494,284
Investment advisory, management and custodial fees (123,233)
Net realized gain on investments 86,346
Net unrealized gain on investments 1.605,903

$__2.063.300

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value 1s the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability
(an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants on the measurement date. A fair value hierarchy requires
an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs
when measuring fair value. The three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value are:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

-10 -



CIEE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

August 31, 2011

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of August 31, 2011, are summarized below

by level of input:

Investments

Marketable equity securities
Consumer discretionary and staples
Energy
Financial institutions
Healthcare
Industrial
Information technology
Materials
Real estate investment trust
Other stocks
Small cap equity funds
International equity funds

Total marketable equity securities

Mutual funds
Energy

Corporate debt and government obligations
- preservation of value
Corporate bonds
Government bonds
U.S. Government agency and asset
backed securities
Bond funds
Other assets

Total corporate debt and government
obligations

Private offering interests - long-term growth
CF Multi-Strategy Equity Investors, LLC
Princeton Futures Fund, LP
Cross Shore Overseas Fund, Ltd
Other

Total other investments

Total investments

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
1,058,260 $ 1,058,260 $ - $ -
1,546,011 1,546,011 - -
1,247,616 1,247,616 - -
883,146 883,146 - -
1,257,862 1,257,862 - -
1,500,343 1,500,343 - -
755,011 755,011 - -
483,924 483,924 - -
311,936 311,936 - -
276,805 276,805 - -
2.152.494 2,152,494 - -
11,473,408 11,473,408 - -
429 625 429 625 - -
2,932,760 - 2,932,760 -
1,026,243 - 1,026,243 -
469,598 - 469,598 -
541,327 - 541,327 -
665,824 - 665824 -
5,635,752 - 5635752 -
1,167,330 - 1,167,330 -
994 478 - - 994,478
952,828 - - 952,828
55,327 - - 55.327
3.169 963 - 1.167.330 2,002.633
$ 20,708,748 $_11,903.033 $ 6,803,082 $ 2002633

-11-



CIEE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

August 31, 2011

Activity in Level 3 investments for the year ended August 31, 2011 is as follows

Level 3 investments at September 1, 2010 $ -
Purchases 2,056,957
Unrealized losses (included in return on investments in the

statements of activities) (54.324)

Level 3 investments at August 31, 2011 $_2,002,633

Unrealized depreciation from Level 3 investments still
held as of August 31, 2011 $__(54.324)

Level 2 corporate debt and government obligation investments are valued based on quoted market
prices for similar assets. The fair value of Level 2 and Level 3 limited liability company and limited
partnerships is based on the net asset values per share of the respective funds as reported in the
financial statements of the related interest. The classification of Common (CF) Fund Multi-Strategy
Equity Investors, LLC changed from Level 1 in 2010 to Level 2 in 2011 to more accurately reflect
the method used in determining the fair value of the asset.

Retirement Plans

Title | 403(b) Plan

CIEE maintains a defined contribution 403(b) plan for eligible employees. Under this plan, CIEE
contributes 2 5% of compensation during an employee's first year of eligibility and 5% thereafter.
During the year ended August 31, 2011, CIEE contributed approximately $454,000 to the 403(b)
plan.

Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions

CIEE has an unfunded postretirement medical plan, covering all eligible U.S. employees. The plan
pays the cost of medical coverage with a premium cap for those employees who retire after age 65
with 25 or more years of service.

The accumulated postretirement benefit obligation is approximately $2,333,000 at August 31,
2011, and is included in accrued expenses in the statement of financial position. Related expense
and benefits paid are not material.

For measurement purposes, a health care cost trend rate assumption of 7.5% was used for 2011,
which remains level through 2019 with slight decreases in the rate thereafter. The weighted
average discount rate used in determining the projected postretirement benefit obligation was
5.75%.

-12-



CIEE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

August 31, 2011

Debt

The note bears interest at 4.5% and is payable to a bank in monthly installments of $54,194,
including interest, through August 2019 when all remaining principal is due. The note Is
collateralized by all real and personal property of CIEE.

Principal maturities for the next five fiscal years and thereafter are as follows:

2011 $ 353,000
2012 374,000
2013 392,000
2014 410,000
2015 428,000
Thereafter 4,695,248
Total $__6.652,248

The loan agreement contains certain restrictive financial covenants. CIEE was in compliance with
those financial covenants at August 31, 2011.

Total interest expensed and paid in 2011 was approximately $312,000.

Self-Insured Claims and Premiums Reserve

CIEE, through IEXTICO, provides international travel assistance coverage on an occurrence basis
with limits of $100,000 per occurrence and $5,500,000 in the aggregate. Pursuant to a stop loss
reinsurance agreement, losses in excess of $2,751,763 will be borne by the reinsurer. As of
August 31, 2011, incurred claims and estimated unpaid claims have not reached the stop loss
attachment point.

Management has determined that the insurance agreement for the year ended August 31, 2011,
does not subject CIEE to a reasonable possibility of realizing a significant loss. The balance in
self-insured claims and unearned premiums reserve at August 31, 2011, reflects:

Unpaid and incurred but not reported claims liability $ 1,380,930
Unearned premiums 1,216,697
Reinsurance recoverable (121,208)

$___ 2476419

-13-



CIEE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

August 31, 2011

Contingencies
Litigation

In the normal course of business, CIEE may become involved in disputes and claims incidental to
its business. It is CIEE's policy to accrue for amounts related to such legal matters if it is probable
a liability has been incurred and an amount can be reasonably estimated. Although the ultimate
outcome of any legal matter cannot be predicted with certainty, management believes potential
losses, if any, associated with current disputes and claims would not have a material impact on the
cash flow, changes in net assets or financial position on a consolidated basis and will be reported
in the period incurred.

Federal Contracts and Regulations

CIEE sponsors qualifying non-U.S. citizen students in obtaining educational exchange visas when
traveling to the U.S. under its work and study programs. In this role, CIEE is subject to extensive
federal visa-related policies, procedures, and regulations imposed by the U S Department of State
(DOS) and the Student and Exchange Visitor Information System program. From time-to-time, the
DOS may query CIEE on documentation submitted with applications or challenge the qualifications
of students sponsored. CIEE’s management makes every effort to address and resolve DOS
concerns without sanction when notification of potential sanction is received. During the year
ended August 31, 2011, no material penalties, fines or restrictive sanctions were imposed on
CIEE.
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